Facts & Conversations



Talking to Teens:
Underage Drinking









Table of Contents

Introduction:

- 1. How common is underage drinking?
- 2. How common is alcohol abuse among teens?
- 3. Why is underage drinking a problem?
- 4. Why does this matter to you?

The Facts:

- 1. Let's start with some basic physiology and some definitions
 - How does alcohol affect the body?
 - What is alcohol intoxication?
 - What is alcohol poisoning?
 - What is binge drinking?
 - How do you know if a teen is experiencing problem drinking?
 - What is alcohol tolerance?
 - What is alcohol dependence?
 - What is alcoholic withdrawal?
 - What is alcoholic withdrawal delirium?
- 2. Effects of alcohol on the body, by organ system
 - Brain
 - Cardiovascular system
 - Stomach
 - Liver
 - Pancreas
 - Blood
 - Skin
 - Reproductive system
 - Psychiatric effects

Conversations:

- Tempering the conversation to an adolescent's stage of development
- 2. The Early Adolescent (ages 11-14): the middle school years
- 3. The Middle Adolescent (ages 15-17): the high school years
- 4. The Late Adolescent (ages 18-21): the college years

Introduction

As young people enter adolescence and begin to experiment with risk-taking behaviors, alcohol use is often one "rite of passage" in which many teens participate. The attractiveness of such drinking to teens is multi-faceted — at a time when they are feeling physically and socially awkward, it relaxes them and makes them feel more comfortable interacting with their peers. At a time when the importance of "fitting in" is paramount, it is a substance, legal for adults and often thought to be innocent, with which teens experiment, both alone and with their friends. Unfortunately, many teens do not do well with alcohol. They often drink to get drunk, and when intoxicated, may do things that they later regret. Unplanned and unprotected sexual experiences, driving intoxicated or riding with an intoxicated driver and experimentation with illegal drugs and cigarettes are all risky adolescent behaviors seen with underage drinking.

1) How common is underage drinking? -

Many teens drink, even in the early years of adolescence. By the time they reach eighth grade, nearly half of adolescents have had at least one drink, and one in five report having been "drunk".¹ More than half of high school seniors report having drunk alcohol during the last month, and a third admit to having had at least five drinks at a time within the prior two weeks.² Girls are as likely to drink as boys.³ When teens aged 12 to 17 who had drunk any alcohol in the past year were surveyed, almost 40 percent reported at least one serious problem that they had experienced related to alcohol in the past year, with 8 percent reporting psychological problems related to drinking, and 4 percent reporting alcohol-related health problems.⁴

2) How common is alcohol abuse among teens?

In the 12 to 17 age group, the estimated percentage of those identified as having an alcohol abuse or dependence problem ranges from 3 to 11 percent, depending on state of residence, and young adults ages 18 to 25 have the highest rate of alcohol dependence or abuse (17.4 percent) in the nation.⁵

3) Why is underage drinking a problem? –

Although it is illegal to serve or sell alcohol to anyone under the age of 21, alcohol is generally considered a legal product — one that, in moderation, is enjoyed by many adults around the world. However, adolescents drink at a time when they are both physically and psychologically maturing, and the full effect of alcohol on the developing brain is not completely known. In addition, adolescents drink at a stage in life when they feel invulnerable and omnipotent, at a time when they tend to

challenge authority and test limits in an attempt to define their own identities. When alcohol enters into the mix, inhibitions may be lowered, judgment can be impaired in a dangerous way, and serious — even life-threatening — problems can ensue.

Among young people aged 15 to 20, motor vehicle accidents are a leading cause of fatalities; alcohol plays a significant role in such accidents, as it impairs judgment, depth perception and response time. Alcohol use among adolescents also plays a significant role in sexual assaults and high-risk sexual behaviors. Early alcohol use has also been associated with later alcohol reliance; teens who have their first drink before the age of 15 are four times more likely to develop alcohol dependence later in life, compared to those young adults who begin to drink at age 20.²

"Prior to any conversation, it is necessary for parents to have the facts, as teens can be critical and challenging."

Certain adolescents may be more at risk for experiencing problems with alcohol. Children of alcoholics are more likely to experiment with alcohol at a younger age and to experience problem-drinking behaviors. Other risk factors for problem drinking include psychiatric disorders which can be linked with substance abuse and dependency problems. Suicidal behavior in adolescents can sometimes be associated with alcohol and substance abuse.⁶ Underage drinking has also been linked with certain problem behaviors such as school failure, truancy, theft and weapon-carrying which are all associated with alcohol and substance use among teens.⁷ However, it is unclear what is cause and what is effect, in that unhappy teenagers with self-esteem and school problems may be more likely to drink to forget personal problems.

4) Why does this matter to you? __

Outwardly, adolescents may appear scornful of adult advice and intervention, but the literature emphasizes that teenagers who are able to communicate with parents and significant adult role models are more resilient and better armed to resist unsafe risky behaviors. It is crucial for parents and other significant adults to have conversations with adolescents about identity issues, self-esteem and smart decision-making and to explore tactics for resisting peer pressure and navigating through the teen years safely. Sometimes these conversations will need to be initiated by the parent; other times, they will be initiated subtly by the teen. Often, they will need to be repeated, as a teen's psychological readiness to listen to adults and explore certain issues is crucial for an effective conversation. However, prior to any conversation, it is necessary for parents to have the facts, as teens can be critical and challenging. Adults who can offer real fact-based information can help teenagers make more informed and ideally safe decisions.

The Facts



Let's start with some basic physiology and some definitions

How does alcohol affect the body? -

Alcohol works on many organ systems in the body to produce its effects. It is absorbed quickly from the stomach (within minutes) and carried to all parts of the body through the bloodstream. Broadly speaking, there are approximately 10 grams of alcohol in one drink, with one drink being one 12-ounce bottle of beer, 5 ounces of wine (about one glass), or 1.5 ounces of 80-proof liquor — this is around the amount of vodka in a "standard-sized screwdriver." However, keep in mind that drinks are different in potency as the alcohol strength and content differs. One drink will increase the blood alcohol concentration (BAC) in an average person roughly about 20–25 mg/dl or between 0.020 and 0.025 percent, but this is extremely variable and depends on an individual's body weight, gender, tolerance, food status, and the period of time during which the alcohol is drunk. For example, women, who may be smaller and have less total body water than men, may have higher BACs than men after consuming similar amounts of alcohol. Also, eating food could slow the entry of alcohol into the bloodstream. Drinking on an empty stomach may cause a person to become intoxicated more rapidly. Also, it is important to be aware of the fact that all mixed drinks are not the same.

"Some drinks, such as martinis, can have a significantly larger amount of alcohol than others, and yet are often considered 'standard' drinks."

What is alcohol intoxication? -

Legal intoxication for driving is defined as a blood alcohol concentration of 0.08 percent (blood alcohol level of 80 mg/dl). Zero-tolerance laws make it illegal in many states for anyone under the age of 21 to operate a motor vehicle with a blood alcohol concentration of more than 0. Other states allow a BAC of up to 0.02 percent.

Alcohol's primary effect is on the brain. It produces a condition called alcohol intoxication. Initial effects are a lowering of inhibitions and a feeling of pleasure; many adolescents report that alcohol relieves tension and makes them feel more relaxed and

more socially at ease. These effects usually occur with blood levels between 0.05 and 0.10 percent, but in many teens are felt after just one drink. Later symptoms of alcohol intoxication, with blood levels between 0.10 and 0.20 percent, include impaired coordination, irritability, slurred speech, poor balance and delayed reflex time. Most teenagers at this stage are visibly drunk – they may stagger and have trouble expressing themselves. Nausea and vomiting are common. Although alcohol is a central nervous system depressant, paradoxically, adolescents, when drunk, can often be loud and aggressive. However, it is important to note that many adolescents who have been drinking will not have the obvious signs of "being drunk," but will nonetheless suffer many physical and psychological effects.

As blood alcohol concentrations increase to levels in excess of 0.20 percent, confusion and decreased concentration can occur. As more alcohol is ingested, people become sleepier and slower; body functions, including breathing, can become dangerously depressed. Extreme sleepiness, slow shallow breathing, or an inability to be awoken are red flags for severe alcohol intoxication; immediate medical attention may be necessary at this stage.¹⁰

What is alcohol poisoning? ——

At or above alcohol levels of 0.30 percent, the water and salt concentrations in the body become critically imbalanced. In spite of drinking a lot of liquid, an intoxicated person may become dehydrated. On examination, an alcohol-poisoned youth may have pinpoint pupils and slow breathing. Low blood pressure and decreased heart rate are also present with high alcohol levels. An intoxicated person may vomit and then choke on this vomit and suffocate. Coma can occur at higher levels; blood alcohol levels above 0.40 percent can be lethal.

What is binge drinking? ——

This term has generally meant drinking a lot of alcohol in a short period of time. Most experts now define binge drinking as drinking five or more drinks in one stretch of time for males, and four or more for females. However, this definition does not take into account the time period during which the drinking occurs (some teens will drink their drinks quickly over several hours, and others may sip them over the course of an entire night). Blood alcohol concentrations can certainly vary, but impairment is probable with binge drinking.

How do you know if a teen is experiencing problem drinking?

Although all alcohol use in adolescents is illegal, certain situations are cause for immediate alarm. When a teen drinks more than he/she feels comforable with and feels guilty about it, when a teen loses control over the amount or frequency of drinking, when a teen blacks out (loses memory) and does something regrettable, when a teen vomits and embarrasses

him/herself, when a teen engages in regrettable/unsafe sexual experiences — all of these are examples of problem drinking. Certainly, the need for an early morning drink indicates dependence. Binge drinking, too, is usually viewed as problem drinking, as is daily drinking or drinking when alone. Particularly for teens with a family history of alcoholism, problem drinking may be a red flag that can signal future substance abuse problems. Also, for teenagers who may be depressed or suffer from other psychiatric disorders, alcohol use may become problematic if it becomes a means for self-medication.¹²

Medical signs of problem drinking are rare in teens. Occasionally, adolescents who drink to excess may complain of morning headaches and fatigue and some may develop stomach irritation, peptic ulcer symptoms, or even inflammation of the pancreas. Behavioral signs are much more common and may include school truancy and failure, lethargy, mood swings and depression.

What is alcohol tolerance? -

This is when a drinker needs more and more alcohol to achieve a particular state of intoxication. Someone who drinks regularly may notice that the usual amount of alcohol no longer gives the desired feeling of intoxication, and that it takes more alcohol to feel the effects of drinking. Significant tolerance is often seen in the condition of alcohol dependence.

What is alcohol dependence? —

This is a medically worrisome condition that may predict more long-term, serious medical and psychological consequences related to chronic drinking. It occurs when at least three of the following conditions or behaviors are present:

- tolerance
- withdrawal
- habitually drinking more than was initially intended
- constantly desiring to cut down or control the pattern of drinking
- spending a lot of time drinking or recovering from the effects of alcohol
- finding that normal social, recreational, educational or occupational activities are being given up in pursuit of alcohol
- continuing to drink in spite of knowing how detrimental it is to one's health and life

What is alcohol withdrawal?

This condition may occur if a chronic drinker either slows down or stops drinking completely, and is related to a drop in blood alcohol level. Withdrawal usually begins several hours after a chronic drinker's last drink. Tremors, known as "the shakes," may be present within the first two days. This may be accompanied by high blood pressure,

rapid pulse, nausea, vomiting and intense anxiety. Seizures are possible in the condition of alcohol withdrawal, and may occur approximately 24 hours after last alcohol use.

What is alcoholic withdrawal delirium?

This is a serious withdrawal syndrome, also known as delirium tremens or DTs, that usually occurs after daily alcohol use and years of dependence. It is quite rare in teenagers because most have not been drinking for long enough. There is a significant death rate (approximately 20%) associated with this condition. Agitation, insomnia, tremors, confusion, fever and delusions are usually present. The hallmark of this delirium is the presence of vivid and usually frightening visual hallucinations.

2) Effects of alcohol on the body — by organ system

The Brain -

Alcohol causes central nervous system depression — it slows down all the functions of the brain. As adolescents' brains are still developing, alcohol may interrupt important processes, leading to a decrease in thinking ability. Alcohol seems to affect a part of the brain called the hippocampus — a part of the brain responsible for learning and memory, making it less likely to fully develop. The hippocampus has been noted to be smaller in adolescents who are alcohol dependent. Possible learning disabilities in the adolescent brain can result. Alcohol use has been linked to impairment in thinking, short-term and long-term memory problems, cerebellar degeneration (a wasting away of the part of the brain responsible for balance), and peripheral neuropathy (nerve problems causing numbness and pain). Long-term use may result in dementia; this may be related to nutritional deficiencies from chronic drinking. Korsakoff's syndrome is a type of dementia seen in alcoholics related to a deficiency of one of the B vitamins called thiamine.

The Cardiovascular System -

Low heart rate and low blood pressure are seen in intoxication; rapid pulse and high blood pressure occur during alcohol withdrawal. Various heart conditions such as arrhythmias (irregular heartbeat), cardiomyopathy (a sickness of the muscles in the heart), and hypertension (high blood pressure) occur with long-term chronic use.

The Stomach

Alcohol is toxic to the stomach lining and may result in inflammation of the lining (gastritis) or even ulcer disease. Esophageal varices (these are swollen blood vessels in the esophagus — the upper swallowing tube) can occur with liver cirrhosis; this may cause a person to vomit blood. Mallory-Weiss tears are esophageal tears that occur from forceful vomiting. Certain gastrointestinal cancers are linked to long-term alco-

hol use, such as cancer of the esophagus, which is even more common when alcohol use is combined with chronic cigarette smoking.

The Liver

Alcohol is broken down in the liver. Alcohol use has been related to the conditions of fatty liver, alcoholic hepatitis and cirrhosis. Some of these syndromes may cause abdominal pain; others may exist without symptoms until the end stages. Severe cirrhosis can present as jaundice (yellow skin and eyes), bloated stomach and vomiting of blood.

The Pancreas -

This is a small organ that secretes digestive hormones and insulin. Chronic alcohol use can result in pancreatitis (a toxic inflammation of the pancreas). Symptoms are nausea, vomiting, and a severe pain that occurs when anything is eaten. Pancreatitis can lead to weight loss and malnutrition.

The Blood

Anemia (or low blood count) is common in patients who use alcohol chronically; this is related to blood loss from bleeding and gastritis, as well as folate and vitamin deficiency. Low platelets from alcohol's toxic effect on the bone marrow can result in easy bruising and bleeding. Prolonged alcohol use also affects the immune system and causes increased susceptibility to infection.

The Skin -

Flushing of the skin occurs during alcohol intoxication and sweating during withdrawal syndromes.

The Reproductive System ———

Alcohol use has been related to inability to have an erection in males, and long-term use can decrease the sperm count. Some studies suggest that cancers of the breast and prostate may be associated with chronic alcohol use.^{13, 14} Women who are pregnant and drink have a risk of bearing a child with a congenital problem called "fetal alcohol syndrome."

Psychiatric Effects -

Anxiety and depression have been linked to alcohol abuse. As alcohol can lower inhibitions, adolescents who are depressed and under the influence of alcohol may even attempt suicide. Delirium, hallucinations and psychosis are seen in severe alcohol withdrawal syndromes.

Conversations



1) Tempering the conversation to an adolescent's stage of development

Just as adolescents go through the tumultuous progression of physical changes that comprise puberty, they also develop, both cognitively and psychologically, in a progressive manner. Adolescent Medicine specialists tend to divide the teen years into three stages: early (approximate ages 11–14 years), middle (ages 15–17 years) and late (ages 18–21...although some young people remain adolescents, psychologically, way into their 20s!). These psychological stages are marked by characteristic developmental phenomena with respect to body image, cognition, dependence/independence issues, peer interactions and identity development. And if and how a teen chooses to engage in risky behaviors, or respond to peers' risk-taking behaviors, depends on where he/she is psychologically at the moment.

Any conversation an adult has with an adolescent must take into account where that teen is psychologically and cognitively. And to further complicate matters, where a teen is physically may not correspond to where he/she is psychologically. For example, a physically mature-looking teenager who is cognitively immature may be at particular risk of finding him/herself in an uncomfortable social situation because people may think that he/she is, in fact, older. Recognizing this and talking about it before it occurs is an important way an adult can help a teen develop the skills to manage these challenging experiences.

2) The Early Adolescent (Ages 11–14) -

Early adolescents tend to be teens who struggle with body image concerns as they maneuver their way through the beginning stages of puberty. They are preoccupied with themselves and their changing bodies, often magnifying their imperfections, and they may walk around feeling as if they are at "center stage." Their behavior can be erratic as they start to struggle with emancipation issues — one minute slamming their door and insisting on independence and privacy, the next minute running to their parents for comfort. Peer acceptance begins to be important to them; kids at this stage tend to want to dress and act like their friends, and looking different or individualistic is undesirable. However, early adolescents are still at the stage when crazy, risk-taking behaviors can seem ridiculous and self-destructive.

Early adolescents are often idealistic, questioning, critical of their environment, and quick to call adults hypocrites if what they observe adults saying and doing don't match. It

is important for adults to understand, though, that cognitively, these young teenagers are still concrete thinkers, and are often unable to conceive of the future consequences of present actions.

You may answer: "Yes, it's legal — but for anyone over 21." Teenagers' bodies and their minds are still maturing, and alcohol affects all parts of the body, especially the brain. Teenagers who drink often can't handle the effects of alcohol. They may have trouble thinking clearly and show really poor judgment — and make serious mistakes. They also can lose their balance and have impaired coordination. People who drink alcohol often lose control, and teenagers can do really stupid things when they lose control.

"Any conversation an adult has with an adolescent must take into account where that teen is psychologically and cognitively."

Why do people drink? They look sloppy when they do, and they smell like alcohol...

Remember — children at this age are quite concrete, and discussing the obvious negative physical effects of alcohol may make more of an impression than talking about the more abstract long-term physical and psychological consequences of underage drinking. So, yes, this might be a time to explore the young adolescent's concrete perceptions of drinkers. Have they seen teenagers who were drunk, and who vomited, smelled bad, and made fools of themselves? Have they heard about car accidents in which teenagers were driving while intoxicated? It is never too early to begin talking to teens and sharing real stories about why underage drinking is dangerous to health and safety.

This also might be a good time to talk about peer pressure, and what some teenagers may do to fit in. Explore ways to resist peer pressure and provide answers that they can offer to friends who are pressuring them to do something with which they are not comfortable.

Early adolescence is a good time to give teens concrete strategies for negotiating uncomfortable situations. For example, if someone offers them a drink and they feel uncomfortable saying "no," you can suggest that they just hold the drink and not drink it, or quietly pour it out. Also, tell them that they can always call home asking for help, and blame it on their parents.

3) The Middle Adolescent (Ages 15 – 17)

Teenagers during the middle adolescent years struggle more with peer relationships and independence from their parents. Physically, many of these kids have completed puberty and have adult-type bodies with which they are becoming comfortable. However, psychologically, many changes are in process. The search for peer acceptance, the struggle for independence from parents, and the testing of limits can consume these years, and make middle adolescence a challenge for any parent. Cognitively, these teenagers tend to bounce back and forth between concrete and abstract thought. They are just beginning to sense that there are future consequences for present actions; however, in spite of this, they still consider themselves omnipotent and invulnerable — immune from harm. These are the "it can't happen to me" years, often dominated by risk-taking and experimentation. Many of the serious problems of adolescence, associated with experimentation with drugs, tobacco, drinking and sexual activity, occur during these years as teens seek to define their own identities. Additionally, psychological problems, such as depression, may manifest themselves during the middle-adolescent years, and teenagers may attempt to self-medicate using drugs or alcohol.

"Parents and adults need to keep up an ongoing dialogue with the teenager throughout adolescence."

During these years, fitting in with peers and rebelling against parental figures becomes the norm. Teens may pretend that they don't value your opinion, but they really do! Often, the conversation will have to take place on the teen's terms — at whatever moment they will give you their attention. A wise adult will create opportunities for this to happen. Perhaps these conversations will occur while driving in the car together (when the adolescent is not looking at you directly), or during dinnertime, or late at night, right before the teenager goes to bed.

Teens may appear to share less during these years; however, it is crucial for the adult to step back, be available for conversations, and be tuned in to hints that the teen is willing to discuss these issues. Mutual respect is key. Try not to talk down to the teenager; offer your opinions and beliefs in as non-patronizing a manner as possible.

Statement: There's nothing wrong with drinking — everyone does it!

Oftentimes, the teenager is fishing for your response and hoping you can offer a sound rebuttal that he/she can use in the future. You may need to ask the questions in order to enable the teen to sort out his/her beliefs: Who is everybody? How do they handle their alcohol? Have you seen anyone get into trouble after drinking? What happens to people who don't drink; are they mocked or ostracized, or are they respected? Do you respect kids who stick up for what they believe in?

This is also the time to offer the facts in more detail — middle adolescents are usually mature enough to understand them. You can talk about the physiological effects of alcohol on the body, especially the brain, as well as the consequences of alcohol misuse.

Because kids are more independent during this stage, it is not unlikely that they will find themselves in social situations where they will need to rely on their own judgment to make their own decisions; the parent's role is to facilitate smart decision-making.

4) The Late Adolescent (Ages 18–21) —

The late adolescent is usually physically and cognitively mature. Pubertal development is complete and adult height has been attained. Teens at this stage can usually think abstractly and reason logically, and have enhanced memory and decision-making skills. Many of the crazy, risky behaviors of middle adolescence have abated, and the teen is usually seen as more serious and goal-oriented. These may be the college years, and/or the early working years. Psychologically, the teen has begun to reintegrate certain family and peer values into a personal code of behavior. Identity formation is usually settled, as these older adolescents come to terms with who they are and where they are headed.

What kind of conversations can you have with a late adolescent?

Often, late teens will not ask you the questions; they may believe that they know more than you (and in some respects, they may be right!). You may need to ask them the questions, and then gently guide them as they struggle with the answers.

What can you ask them? Have you ever drunk any alcohol? What's the most you drank at any one time (over a period of hours or during an evening/night)? Have you ever been drunk? Do you think alcohol use can be dangerous? How? How do your friends act when they drink? Have any of your friends ever lost control and done something that they regretted later? Has anyone ever gotten into a fight, or been involved in a car accident, or taken risks after drinking? What do you think about it? If one of your friends was drinking and then got into trouble, how would you help? What would you do if you needed to get home, but the driver who was supposed to bring you home had been drinking?

For teenagers who go away to college, campus drinking is often a fact of life. Although many who drink are above the age of 21, younger undergraduates will find themselves in settings around drinking or with easy access to alcohol. Many will also be away from home for the first time and will use their newfound freedom to experiment and engage in behavior that was considered off-limits while in high school. Unfortunately, drinking — and sometimes heavy drinking — is common on college campuses; college students tend to drink in order to get drunk. The harmful consequences of this type of drinking (unplanned and unprotected sexual activity, assaults and car accidents) are similar to those of high school drinking; however, they may be more common on college campuses where parents and authority figures are less present. It is important to speak frankly with the older adolecent about how he/she will react to the possibility of college alcohol use. Preparing strategies for safety, in advance, can be helpful. Learning how to access student health services and discovering the channels for reporting safety issues within the college system can be helpful ways to prepare a teen for potentially dangerous situations.

"For teenagers who go away to college, campus drinking is often a fact of life."

For older adolescents who do not go to college but live at home or on their own, the issues may be similar. The risks of underage drinking are the same, and although more adults may be present in these childrens' lives, older teens may feel independent and reluctant to listen to parents. When children reach the age of 18 and are legally emancipated, they believe they are grown up and may resent when parents or other adults try to tell them how to behave. You must still try to have these conversations — but remember, older teens may think they know more than you do. Again, it may help to ask them their opinions rather than speak down to them or lecture them, and then help them figure out ways to avoid illegal and unsafe behavior.

Driving is more common among older adolescents, and so the risk of alcohol-related car accidents increases in this age group. Alcohol seems to impair the driving skills of teenagers to a greater extent than adults. This may have something to do with teens' relative lack of tolerance to the effects of alcohol, as well as with their overall inexperience with driving. The alcohol-involved fatality rate is twice as high among adolescents as among adult drivers. The raising of the legal drinking age to 21 from 18, as well as the enactment of zero-tolerance laws for adolescent drinking, are legal measures intended to prevent alcohol-related driving accidents. Older children need to know this; sharing the facts can help.

Last Thoughts

Anyone under stress may regress psychologically. Mature adolescents may intermittently think like younger teens and revert to more immature behavior; subsequently, they may have holes in their decision-making capabilities when they are in new, stressful situations. An adult's role can be to listen carefully, offer guidance, allow the teen to be frank, and then help them learn from any mistakes they may have made. Know the facts and share them. Using these facts, you can help the teenager prepare strategies in advance to deal with potentially illegal and dangerous situations.

And Remember

Parents and adults need to keep up an ongoing dialogue with the teenager throughout adolescence. They need to revisit issues as they come up, tailoring their approach according to the adolescent's psychological stage and circumstances. Parents and adults are not powerless. They have much to offer in helping teens navigate through the adolescent years safely.

Author

Karen Soren, MD Associate Clinical Professor of Pediatrics and Public Health, Columbia University Medical Center Director of Adolescent Health Care, Morgan Stanley Children's Hospital of NewYork-Presbyterian

Health Alliance on Alcohol

A national education initiative on underage consumption of alcohol through parent/child communications.

NewYork-Presbyterian Healthcare System

The NewYork-Presbyterian Healthcare System, the largest secular not-for-profit non-governmental health care system in the U.S., is committed to providing high-quality, cost-effective and accessible care to communities throughout the greater New York Metropolitan region. The System, made up of 38 acute care hospitals, 100 ambulatory sites, 16 residential health care facilities, three specialty institutions, and more than 15,000 affiliated physicians, serves one in four patients in the Greater New York Metropolitan Area. The System is also the largest not-for-profit employer in New York City. System members are affiliates of the Joan and Sanford I. Weill Medical College of Cornell University or Columbia University College of Physicians and Surgeons. During 2003, System institutions discharged more than 560,000 inpatient cases and saw more than 5,700,000 cases on an outpatient basis. For additional information, visit www.nyp.org.

White Plains Hospital Center -

White Plains Hospital Center is a voluntary, not-for-profit health care organization with the primary mission of offering high-quality, acute health care and preventative medical care in a compassionate manner to all people who live in, work in or visit Westchester County and its surrounding areas. The Hospital has the busiest Emergency Department in Westchester County, treating approximately 24,000 patients in 2004. Its "Centers of Excellence" include cardiology, emergency medicine, endoscopy, minimally invasive surgery, oncology, orthopedics, neonatal and maternity, and radiology. The Hospital has won the National Research Corporation "Consumer Choice Award" for Westchester County four times, most recently in 2004. WPHC is an affiliate of the NewYork-Presbyterian Healthcare System and a member of Stellaris Health Network, Inc. and Voluntary Hospitals of America, Inc. For additional information, visit www.wphospital.org.

Morgan Stanley Children's Hospital of NewYork-Presbyterian

Ranked by U.S. News & World Reports as one of the top five children's hospitals in the country, Morgan Stanley Children's Hospital of NewYork-Presbyterian offers the best available care in every area of pediatrics — including the most complex neonatal and critical care, and all areas of pediatric subspecialties — in a family-friendly and technologically advanced setting. Building a reputation for more than a century as one of the nation's premier children's hospitals, Morgan Stanley Children's Hospital of NewYork-Presbyterian is affiliated with Columbia University College of Physicians and Surgeons, and is New York City's only hospital dedicated solely to the care of children and the largest provider of children's health services in the tri-state area with a long-standing commitment to its community. Morgan Stanley Children's Hospital of NewYork-Presbyterian is also a major international referral center, meeting the special needs of children from infancy through adolescence worldwide.

Heineken USA

Heineken USA Inc., the nation's largest beer importer, is a subsidiary of Heineken International (Netherlands), which is the world's most international brewer. The Company and its affiliates are firmly committed to promoting responsible consumption of beverage alcohol. Among other distinctions, Heineken was the first brewer in the world to place a responsible consumption message on all of its bottles and cans. Heineken USA was also the first alcohol company to place a responsibility message on all of its television, radio and print advertising. Please visit www.EnjoyHeinekenResponsibly.com.

References



- 1. Johnston, L.D., O'Malley, P.M., Bachman, J.G. Monitoring the Future: National Results on Adolescent Drug Use. Overview of Key Findings, 2002. NIH Pub. No. 03-5374. Bethesda, MD. National Institute on Drug Abuse (NIDA), 2003.
- National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism. Underage Drinking: A Major Public Health Challenge, Alcohol Alert No. 59, April 2003.
- Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, National Household Survey on Drug Abuse Population Estimates 1998, Rockville, MD: U.S. Department of Health and Human Services, 1999.
- Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, National Household Survey on Drug Abuse Main Findings 1997 (Table 9.3), Rockville, MD: DHHS, 1999.
- 5. Substance Abuse and Mental Health Services Administration, Office of Applied Studies, National Survey on Drug Use and Health, 2002 and 2003.
- National Institute on Alcohol Abuse and Alcoholism, Youth Drinking: Risk Factors and Consequences, Alcohol Alert No. 37, July 1997.
- 7. Alcohol Use and Delinquent Behaviors Among Youth. The NSDUH (National Survey on Drug Use and Health) Report, SAMHSA, April 1, 2005.
- 8. Sieving, R.E., Oliphant, J.A., Blum, R.W. Adolescent sexual behavior and sexual health. Pediatrics in Review. 23: 407-416, 2002.
- 9. National Highway Traffic Safety Administration, http://www.nhtsa.dot.gov
- 10. Fishman, M., Bruner, A., Adger, H. Substance abuse among children and adolescents. Pediatrics in Review, Vol. 18, No. 11, 1997.
- 11. Wechsler, H., MD. Binge Drinking and the American College Student: What's Five Drinks? Psychology Addictive Behaviors, 15:287-291, 2001.
- 12. Ed: Evans, D.L., Foa, E.B., et al. Treating and Preventing Adolescent Mental Health Disorders What We Know and What We Don't Know. Oxford University Press, 356-363, 2005.
- 13. Vachon, C.M., Cerhan, J.R., Vierkant, R.A. and Sellers, T.A. Investigation of an interaction of alcohol intake and family history on breast cancer risk in the Minnesota Breast Cancer Family Study. Cancer 92(2):240–248, 2001.
- 14. Hayes, R.B., Brown, L.M., Schoenberg, J.B., et al. Alcohol use and prostate cancer risk in U.S. blacks and whites. American Journal of Epidemiology, 143 (7): 692-697, 1996.

